
City of Nevada City 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

THURSDAY, JULY 21, 2016 1:30 PM 

Council Chambers – City Hall 

317 Broad Street - Nevada City, CA  95959 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

•AUDIENCE MEMBERS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON ITEMS ON

THE AGENDA:  After recognition by the Chair, state your name, address and your comments or questions.

Please direct your remarks to the Commission.  So that all interested parties may speak, please limit your

comments to the item under discussion.  All citizens will be given the opportunity to speak, consistent with

Constitutional rights.  Time limits are at the discretion of the Chair.  •If you challenge the Commission’s

decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else specifically

raised or delivered in writing to the Planning Commission at or prior to the meeting.  •Requests for disability-

related modifications or accommodations may be made by contacting the City Planner and should be made at

least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

__________________________________________________________________________________________

Mission Statement 

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town character 

 and historical architecture while providing quality public services 

 for our current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL Chair Brad Croul, Vice-Chair Pamela Meek, Commissioners Dan Thiem, John Parent, Stuart 

Lauters 

APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES  

June 16, 2016 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to 

three minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time.  

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPLICATION 

1. 216 South Pine Street - Justin Pfaffinger, owner–  Roof-mounted solar installation (within

Historical District)

2. 422 Spring Street – Juliet Gobert, owner – Exterior Alterations (within Historical District)

3. 205 York Street (Tinnery) – Rebecca Coffman, owner – Exterior Alteration (within Historical

District)

DEMOLITION, ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW, and VARIANCE APPLICATION 

4. 214 Mill Street – Laurie Beacock, owner – Demolish fire-damaged residence and rebuild an

expanded residence in the same location.



July 21, 2016 PC 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

DESIGN RECOMMENDATION 

5. Utah Philips Peace Bench – Lorraine Reich, project representative - Design and location 

recommendation to City Council 

USE PERMIT 

6. 109 North Pine Street – Mark Lobaugh, Epic Wireless, project representative – cellular antenna 

installation 

*The applicant has requested a continuance to the next scheduled meeting date (no staff report 

provided)  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS –Previously approved projects – informational only 

None 

 

STAFF APPROVALS AND DETERMINATIONS – (for information only): 

123 Boulder Street  – Removal of one dead locust tree  

421 Nevada Street  – Residential roof-mounted solar 

314 Gethsemene – Like for like roof replacement 

 

CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   Next Regular Meeting – August 18, 2016       

 

ADJOURNMENT:    



City of Nevada City 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES  

THURSDAY, JUNE 16, 2016 1:30 PM 

Council Chambers – City Hall 

317 Broad Street - Nevada City, CA  95959 

 

For a full record of this meeting please refer to the video record of this meeting located  

on the Nevada City Website 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL Chair Brad Croul, Vice-Chair Pamela Meek, Commissioners Dan Thiem, Stuart Lauters, John 

Parent (absent) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES    

May 19, 2016 

 

Motion by D. Thiem to approve minutes of May 19, 2016 

Second by P. Meek 

Vote: 4/0/1absent, motion carries 

 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to 

three minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time.  

 

Public Speakers: Stuart Lauters 

 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPLICATION 

1. 215 Prospect Street – Patricia Hamilton & Michael Collins, owners –  Chimney alteration 

(bordering Historical District) 

Public: None 

 

Motion by D. Thiem to approve the chimney enclosure with a wooden chase as provided in the application 

exhibits 

Second by S. Lauters 

Vote: 4/0/1 absent, motion carries 

 

USE PERMIT 

1. 109 North Pine Street  – Mark Lobaugh, applicant representative  –  Application to the Planning 

Commission for a Conditional Use Permit to install eight (8) cellular antennas mounted on four (4) 

pipe mounts, affixed to various points of the rooftop (within Historical District) 

 

Public Comment: Please refer to the video record of this meeting located on the Nevada City Website 

 

Motion by D. Thiem to continue this item to the next regular meeting 

Second by P. Meek 

Vote: 4/0/1 absent, motion carries 

 

RECOMMENDATION TO STAFF 

1. Vape Lounge Zoning Regulations 



April 21, 2016 PC 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS –Previously approved projects – informational only 

 

STAFF APPROVALS AND DETERMINATIONS – (for information only): 

540 West Broad Street  – Removal of two trees (Liquid Amber, Redwood) 

429 Washington Street – Removal of one dead Elm tree 

222/224 Broad Street  - Like-for-like roof replacement 

 

CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   Next Regular Meeting – July 21, 2016       

 

ADJOURNMENT:    

     



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:    Planning Commission 

FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

HEARING DATE:  July 21, 2016 

APPLICANT: Justin Pfaffinger, D.D.S (property owner), Ian Isbell, Byers Enterprises (representative) 

RE: Applications for Architectural Review for Roof Mounted Solar Installation, 216 
South Pine Street 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Architectural Review Application

ACTION REQUESTED 
1. Approve roof-mounted solar system at 216 South Pine Street.

SITE SPECIFICATIONS 
Lot Size: 0.23 acres Lot Coverage: 100% 
Zoning: GB-HD: General Business-Historical District Building Height: 40-feet
Setbacks: Front yard: none, Rear Yard: none, Interior side 

yards: none 
Historical District: Within

BACKGROUND 
The subject building is currently used as a dentistry business. The 1898 Sanborn Map shows this 
structure historic use as a residence. It is located in the same footprint and appears to have been 
converted to office use in 2001 based on building permit records. The Assessor does not have an 
estimated construction date. An early photograph of the building shows that the exterior appearance is 
largely unchanged since the early 1900s. 

1898 Sanborn Excerpt 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Current View Early 1900s 

PROPOSED PROJECT:  Property owner, Justin Pfaffinger has authorized Byers Enterprises, Inc to 

permit and install 36 solar modules to the south facing roof plane.  The applicant is proposing to place 

the modules toward the western side of the south-facing roof with an intention of minimizing any view 

from South Pine Street. The grid tied inverters will be located in the basement of the building and will 

not be visible by the public.   

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The project would be exempt from environmental review pursuant to Sections 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  Exemption applies to minor alterations of structures 

involving no or negligible expansion of an existing use.   

RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The

County will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.

Therefore, prior to issuance of a building permit, submit three sets of plans to Nevada City Planning

Department, along with a filing fee of $80 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  The plans

will be reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the approval and will

require their signatures.

2. A Planning Commission member shall be appointed as a Liaison to assist the applicant with any

minor modifications to the permit, if needed.

Approximate location of solar panels 



Attachment1.1



Attachment1.2



Attachment1.3



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:  Planning Commission 

FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

HEARING DATE:  July 21, 2016 

APPLICANT: Juliet Gobert, property owner 

RE:   Applications for Architectural Review for Exterior Alterations at 422 Spring Street 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Architectural Review Application
2. Elevation and Site Plan Exhibit
3. Window Exhibit
4. Photographs of existing house 

ACTION REQUESTED 
1. Approve exterior improvements to the private residential structure:

o Replace siding with Hardie Plank siding
o New siding and roof color selections outlined below
o Replace assorted window styles with Jeld-wen double hung windows
o Replace assorted roofing material with corrugated metal

SITE SPECIFICATIONS 
Lot Size: 0.17 acres Lot Coverage: 100% 
Zoning: GB-HD: General Business-Historical District Building Height: 40-feet
Setbacks: Front yard: none, Rear Yard: none, Interior side 

yards: none 
Historical District: Within

BACKGROUND 
The subject residence is shown on both the 1898 and 1912 Sanborn Maps in substantially the same 
location as the current residence. Both historic maps indicate that the parcel was substantially smaller 
than the current configuration and that sometime later it was merged with the easterly adjacent parcel. 
Both maps also indicate that a separate residence was located on this adjacent lot, though it has been 
long demolished and serves as a yard for the existing residence with a shed.   The Assessor does not 
have an estimated construction date. Other than a deck replacement for a 64 square foot deck, building 
records do not indicate any remodeling having occurred to this residence. However, prior to 1962 no 
building permits were required so improvements may have been made prior to that time without a 
record.  

1912 Sanborn Excerpt Current Aerial View 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

 

PROPOSED EXTERIOR ALTERATIONS:  Property owner, Juliet Gobert intends to keep the basic 

structural form of the existing residence in-tact. The house will remain the same size and configuration. 

The finish materials are in severe disrepair and Gobert is proposing to repair siding when possible and 

replace with Hardie Plank siding where needed.  She is proposing an optional decorative shingle design 

within the front gable to add architectural interest. The existing roof is primarily corrugated metal, 

though a portion of the roof appears to have composite shingles. Govert is proposing to use corrugated 

metal pursuant to the color scheme below. The assorted window styles will all be replaced with double-

hung windows featuring simulated true-divided lites, in white (Frost). 

 

Feature Roofing Siding* Optional gable 

shingles 

Trim 

Material Metal Sales, corrugated 

steel 

Hardie Plank lap 

siding, grain 

surface 

Hardie Plank  Hardie Plank 

Color                    

 

 

 

 

  
        

    

    

 Galvenize Steel Boothbay Blue Evening Blue Arctic White 

*applicant is open to an alternate siding color and surface if either is preferred by the Commission, see 

Attachment 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  

Because residential use of a structure is an allowed use in the GB base zoning designation, local 

authority can only be ministerial in nature. Sections 21080 of the Public Resource Code, of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), exempts ministerial projects from environmental 

review.   

 

RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL:  

1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The 

County will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.  

Therefore, prior to issuance of a building permit, submit three sets of plans to Nevada City Planning 

Department, along with a filing fee of $80 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  The plans 

will be reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the approval and will 

require their signatures.   

 

2. A Planning Commission member shall be appointed as a Liaison to assist the applicant with any 

minor modifications to the permit, if needed. 
 



Attachment 1.1



Attachment 1.2



Attachment 1.3



Attachment 2.1



Attachment 2.2



Attachment 3.1



Attachment 3.2



Attachment 4.1



Attachment 4.2



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:   Planning Commission 

FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

HEARING DATE:  July 21, 2016 

APPLICANT: Rebecca Coffman, owner 

RE:   Application for Architectural Review for Exterior alterations at 205 York St. (the Tinnery) 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Architectural Review Application

2. Proposal Exhibit with “Before” Photographs/ “After” Renderings Exhibit

3. Selected Window Treatment Options Exhibit 

ACTION REQUESTED 
1. Approve exterior improvements to the Tinnery:

o Two new dormers with windows and corrugated metal siding
o New Front Entry door
o Replacement windows and doorways
o Exterior hardware and lights

SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Lot Size: 0.11 acres Lot Coverage: 100% 

Zoning: GB-HD: General Business-Historical 

District 
Building Height: 40-feet 

Setbacks: Front yard: none, Rear Yard: none, Interior 

side yards: none 

Historical 

District: 

Within 

BACKGROUND 
Staff is estimating that the Tinnery was constructed sometime between 1891 and 1898 based on Sanborn 
Maps. It was constructed over a creek, known as the Oregon Ravine, that runs through town (see Sanbon 
map and photo exhibits below).  The 1898 Sanborn Map indicates the building to be in the same 
footprint and indicates corrugated metal siding on 3-sides of the building with wood siding on the 
northern side just as exists today. The 1912 map indicates a use “A & Stge,” likely signifying storage 
and agricultural usage for the building, ancillary to the then adjacent dwelling and shop on the same 
property. The structure is not considered a contributing building to the Historical District’s inclusion on 
the National Register of Historic Places. However, the structure is symbolic of the City’s mining town 
past and demonstrates an iconic architecture beloved by both residents and tourists. The structure has 
previously been used to accommodate office space, retail, and restaurant use. It has been vacant for over 
a year, in part because the structural integrity is severely compromised, further discussed in the next 
section of this report.  



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

    
1898 Sanborn Excerpt 1912 Sanborn Excerpt Photograph (estimated 1940s) 

 
PROJECT PROPOSAL 
PROPOSED EXTERIOR IMPROVEMNTS: The owner of the building, Rebecca Coffman is proposing 
to repair/replace the foundation. The building has a foundation composed of piled granite stones. There 
has been a minimal amount of additional support added over the years in the form of several small 
concrete piers and a hydraulic jack holding up the northeast corner where the building is sinking. The 
structure also has substandard shear bracing. Coffman is proposing to add shed dormers in the roof and 
skylights in order to bring in light and create a more usable space for the upper floor area. All doors and 
windows will be replaced with metal clad doors and single-hung windows in a dark bronze, in the same 
style as the KVMR Building (Spring Street) and the Griggs Building (Union Street). The selected 
window style is outlined in Attachment 3. Shed-style awnings will add functionality and a more 
welcoming entrance. Entry doors will be added to the eastern, street-side of the building along with an 
upper story window. Coffman is working with the Public Works Department to provide a walkway 
along York Street and improve drainage along the street. The features on the street-side will be off-set 
from center of structure which will preserve the current asymmetrical aesthetic along this elevation.  
Coffman has chosen light fixtures and hardware to match the window and door color, that are consistent 
in style with the rustic nature of the building.  She has prepared an exhibit, Attachment 2, that illustrates 
the proposed changes with “before” photographs and “after” renderings. The owner is taking special 
care to preserve the overall appearance of the structure in its basic form, albeit with some added features 
that are intended to add architectural interest and functionality. Although, there are no tenants lined up 
for the building, Coffman plans to provide a mixed-use space that will accommodate residential, office, 
and commercial retail space after the extensive exterior and interior improvements are completed.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  
The project would be exempt from environmental review pursuant to Sections 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  Exemption applies to minor alterations of structures 
involving no or negligible expansion of an existing use.   
 
RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL:  
1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The 

County will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.  
Therefore, prior to issuance of a building permit, submit three sets of plans to Nevada City Planning 
Department, along with a filing fee of $80 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  The plans 
will be reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the approval and will 
require their signatures.   
 

2. Applicant shall work with the Public Works Department to improve street drainage and provide a 
street-side sidewalk. 

 
3. A Planning Commission member shall be appointed as a Liaison to assist the applicant with any 

minor modifications to the permit, if needed. 



CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
317 Broad Street  y Nevada City, California 95959 y (530) 265-2496 

         APPLICATION FOR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

Check all that apply:
�  A New Building
�  Changes to Existing 
�  In the Historic District 
�  Other (Describe)
      Number of existing units _______ 
      Year of original construction _________ 
Supporting data must be attached:

Applicant/Property Owner 

________________________________________ 
Name
________________________________________ 
Address
________________________________________ 
City, State
________________________________________ 
Phone 
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
HPDLO�DGGUHVV

• Color chips
• Material specs, i.e. roofing, windows, etc.
• Elevations/Site plans

Address and Assessor’s parcel number of property where construction is proposed (also complete attached location key map): 

___________________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Street Address Assessor’s Parcel Number 

Nearest cross street ________________________________ New floor area proposed _____________S.F. 

Briefly describe proposed project: 

Number of dwelling units on property ______________________ 

COMPLETE FOR ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BUILDINGS: 

Construction will involve (check all that apply): 
� Foundation replacement 
� Siding replacement - � All siding or � Repairs over ___________% 
� Roof replacement 
� Use of metal framed windows 
� Removal of old materials. Describe: 

DESCRIPTION OF NEW CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATIONS: Attach architectural elevations or perspective drawing showing all materials, 
colors, finish, lighting, ornamental devices, and any signs. The Commission prefers color chips. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Read and complete the attached pages and include any other statements or attach supporting information to 
substantiate that the architecture is consistent with the Mother Lode Era, or is otherwise consistent with the surroundings. Attach TEN FOLDED COPIES 
of the elevations and/or supporting information, including a site plan showing the existing and proposed building setbacks from all property lines. 
ALL BUILDING DIMENSIONS, INCLUDING BUILDING HEIGHTS, MUST BE SHOWN ON THE ELEVATIONS.

I am the owner or authorized agent for the subject property.  If agent, submit letter from property owner. 

_________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------FOR OFFICE USE ONLY--------------------------------------------------------------------------
Approved by: 

_________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

_________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Filing Fees 

Chk  Cash 

Bus. Lic. 

Rebecca Coffman
19215 B-4 Ranch Road
Nevada CIty, CA
530.265.3355
rcoffman@rebeccacoffman.com

205 York Street, NC 05-096-25-000

Commercial +60 sq. ft.

repair foundation, reposition and replace glass windows & doors, repair and add metal awnings at doors
add shed dormers in roof (3), add skylights (4), add entry foyer at rear (+30 sq.ft. each floor)
upgrade lighting & signage

N/A

plate glass, single pane windows, rotten doors

7/1/16

Attachment 1.1



PLEASE ATTEND THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING TO DISCUSS YOUR REQUEST, OR YOUR APPLICATION 
WILL BE CONTINUED TO THE NEXT MEETING

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW GUIDELINES 

AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Please read this document and provide the information that applies to your application. The City also maintains some reference material 
regarding historical architecture. Ask the City Planner for details. 

POLICY DECLARATION: 

The City’s goal in requiring architectural review is to implement the goals of the City’s General Plan by preserving the character of 
Nevada City architecture in terms of historical value, sit coverage and planning, volume and massing, materials, color, general design 
and details. Historical District work must be in strict compliance with the Mother Lode Era. Preservation of historic materials is 
encouraged. 

The Planning Commission will review each application on its own merit and in the context of the neighborhood of the project. For 
example, plywood siding might be acceptable in an area of modern, similar homes, but not in a neighborhood of old Victorian homes. 

Generally, Nevada City architecture is characterized by many of these design features typical of the Mother Lode Era: Steep peak roofs 
with pitches between 6:12 & 12:12, overhanging roofs with gable ends, covered porches and entries; multi-pane, vertical, and by 
windows, and use of horizontal painted rustic siding. Alterations to older homes should match existing historic materials. Vinyl siding 
has been declared potentially hazardous by the City’s Fire Department. 

SITE PLAN AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

Provide a site plan of the property to scale, showing any proposed tree removal, setbacks, building coverage, fencing and landscaping 
concepts. Attach a tree removal application form if there will be any trees removed. Show off-street parking areas.  

Is the coverage and setback of the new construction compatible with surrounding houses?   � Yes    � No 

Please explain how it is compatible 

VOLUME AND MASSING Lot Size _________________ SF 

Will the proposed building or changes Yes No 
Have a larger floor plan than surrounding buildings? � �
Be taller than surrounding buildings? � �
Block views or sunshine from existing buildings? � �
Does the site plan provide a private yard area? � �

Discussion, if needed: 

The Tinnery is a mixed use building with a restaurant on one side and a residence on the other.

The project is performing repairs and upgrades while maintaining the character.

6,018 sq.ft.

The building will not change in lot coverage except for an enclosed foyer in the rear, +30 sq. ft.

The building will remain as-is except for the add of shed dormers in the roof (below ridgeline)

The replacement and new doors and windows will be dark metal in keeping with the tin barn

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Attachment 1.2



MATERIALS 

Generally, the City prefers horizontal wood siding, treated wood shingles, composition shingles, or metal roofing, true used brick, new 
brick, or mine rock veneers and accents, wood windows in older neighborhoods, and roof pitches in excess of 6:12. 

Please list all materials that you will use and alterations proposed: 

Roof:   Pitch: 

Siding: 

Windows: 

Trim:  

Foundation/Pony walls:  

Decks, porches, railings: 

COLORS (Please provide ten color chips per color) 
Color brand, name, number 

Roof: 

Trim: 

Accents:  

Railings/Decks: 

DETAILS 

Please provide sufficient information to allow review of the building’s details, including: 

x Foundation, rock work or veneer accents
x Vents and flues
x Door and window materials, trim and design detail
x Porch and deck framing and railing details
x Garage door

OTHER APPLICABLE INFORMATION 

Use the space below to provide any additional information for the Planning Commission. 

add 3-shed dormers, add 4-skylights 2'x4' ext.bldg. 11:12

no change, replace with similar as-needed

replace plate glass w/metal clad Loewen Windows - sng. hung, awning, fixed typ.

minimal metal trim at doors and windows for flashing - to match metal siding

new foundation - concrete w/ dk. grey slurry coat if/where exposed

railing, knee braces, awning tension anchors to be custom fabricated in steel

N/A

N/A

dark bronze/steel black

dark bronze/steel black

as-is - corrugated steel

as-is - steel

custom forged steel

custom forged steel

I am working to restore the TInnery to be a contributing building to the Nevada City downtown. 

It is in dire need of a significant amount of work if it is to remain standing. 

It is imparitive to me that I am able to bring light into the upper floor so that it can be utilized.

I am happy to be working with the City of NC Public Works on repairing/upgrading York St. drainage.

The Tinnery is a much loved building and I plan to keep it's character intact.

Thank you for considering my application.

Attachment 1.3



CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
317 Broad Street  y Nevada City, California 95959 y (530) 265-2496 

CHECKLIST FOR�ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPLICATIONS
'LJLWDO�6XEPLWWDO

This packet contains filing forms and instructions for completing a� GLJLWDO architectural review�
application.  Architectural review applications apply to: 

1. New Construction – inside or outside of the Historical District
2. Alterations to buildings within Historical District
3. An addition of new floor area that is greater than 25% of the existing, conditioned living area of the

residence.

The Planning Commission acts as the Architectural Review Committee for all applications for architectural changes to any 
buildings and structures, or the removal or demolition of any structures.   

Please review the following ordinances which will provide the City’s goals in preserving the character of Nevada City 
architecture in terms of historical value, site coverage and planning, as well as volume and massing, materials, color, 
general design and details.  These ordinances also discuss the standards of architectural review within the Historical 
District and the definition of “Mother Lode Era” architecture.  Even though a property is outside of the Historical District, 
City Ordinances provide standards for architectural review “in keeping within the context of the neighborhood.”  

1. Ordinance 90-01 2. Ordinance 92-06
2. Historical District Ordinance 338 3   Nevada City Design Guidelines

PROCESS:  Once a complete application has been submitted, it will be scheduled for Planning Commission review.  
Some applications, such as new construction or major renovations, will require distribution by the City Planner to staff 
such as the City Engineer, Director of Public Works, Police Chief and the Fire Chief.  This can take up to two or three 
weeks for their review and to provide comments and any conditions.  The City Planner will then schedule the
application before the Planning Commission, who meets on 3rd Thursday of each month at 1:30 p.m. at City Hall. 
The applicant or their representative MUST be present to discuss the application at this meeting.  The applicant will 
receive a copy of the agenda and staff report prior to the meeting.  Once approval has been obtained, a building permit can 
be obtained from the Nevada County Building Department. The Building Department will require 2 sets of plans that 
include two City staff signatures (usually City Planner and City Engineer). 

Checklist for application submittal:  Please include the following items as applicable: 
1. Architectural Review application, signed by owner.  If signed by a representative, include a letter of

authorization from the property owner(s).
2. Project Description – please submit a written description of the work proposed.
3. Filing fee of $200 if the construction is less than 25% of the original area of the existing home OR

$800 for new construction, or if the construction is greater than 25%
4. 2QH�GLJLWDO�FRS\�RI�SODQV��DGGLWLRQDO�KDUG�FRSLHV�PD\�EH�UHTXHVWHG�DW�3ODQQHU
V�GLVFUHWLRQ� VHQW�WR�WKH�&LW\
3ODQQHU�DW�DP\�ZROIVRQ#QHYDGDFLW\FD�JRY

5. )LYH color chips, to be distributed with Commissioner’s packets �$OO�FRPPHUFLDO�SURMHFWV�DQG
UHVLGHQWLDO�SURMHFWV�LQ�WKH�+LVWRULFDO�'LVWULFW�

6. Photograph(s) of structure or property or of property if vacant
7. All Material specifications, VXFK�DV�IRU�windows��URRILQJ� and siding

NOTE: SEE FOLLOWING PAGE REGARDING BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE 
REQUIREMENT 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Attachment 1.4



8. Backflow Prevention Device:  The City requires that with the issuance of ANY building permit, a
backflow prevention device shall be installed on the sewer lateral from the City sewer main to the
property.  Attached is information on how to comply with the ordinance.  If a backflow device is not
installed on the property, one will be required PRIOR to the final issuance of any building permit.

HOW TO COMPLY WITH CITY ORDINANCE 
REQUIRING BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE 

The City of Nevada City adopted Resolution 2005-12 on March 14, 2005 which requires that 
with the issuance of any building permit, a back-flow prevention device shall be installed on the 
sewer lateral from the City sewer main to the property.  A back-flow prevention device is also 
required upon the sale of any parcel within the City (prior to the close of escrow or transfer). 

The City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of all building 
permits (construction, roofing, plumbing, etc.).  At the time of building permit application, the 
building staff will ask if a backflow prevention device has been installed.  If not known, the 
Inspector will check when inspecting the property.    If one is not installed, the following process 
needs to be undertaken: 

1. Contact City Hall Planning Department (530-265-2496 x130) to determine to if a back
flow prevention permit is one file.  If one is on file, a copy will be provided to applicant to
give to County Building Department.  If not please take the following steps:

2. Contact plumber or contractor to install a backflow device.

3. Call Nevada City Hall (530-265-2496). Ask for extension 148 (Public Works) and request
an inspection, leaving the name, address and phone number to contact.  An inspection
will be scheduled.

4. After inspection, Public Works will complete a form for applicant to take back to the
County Building Department.  A copy will be retained in the City address files.

Building Permit can be issued by the County

✔

Attachment 1.5



R e b e c c a  C o f f m a n  A r c h i t e c t u r e  |  1 9 2 1 5  B - 4  R a n c h  R d  |  N e v a d a  C i t y ,  C A  |  5 3 0 . 2 6 5 . 3 3 5 5

THE 
TINNERY
205 york street nevada city, ca

N

N
 42°47'00"W

  44.50'
S

47°13'00"W
  5.00'

N
 42°47'00"W

  52.80'

S12°16'00"W
98.00'

S38°28'00"W
  5.06'

N72°51'00"W
76.46'

S16°34'00"W
48.35'

YORK

STREET

RESIDENCE
401 PINE ST

SHED

GARAGE

NEW MOON
203 YORK ST

TINNERY
205 YORK ST

PI
N

E
ST

R
E

ET

COMM
ER

CIA
L

ST
REE

T

□ Create a functional and vibrant
building for the community that
will add to the prosperity of
downtown Nevada City.

□ Be a good neighbor and
contribute to the beauty and
success of York Street while
working with the city to improve
on drainage issues.

□ Protect and enhance the
existing character of the
building by retaining the old tin
while adding hand forged steel
architectural elements.

□ Make necessary repairs to keep
the building from dilapidating
any further so the Tinnery can
once again play an active role in
the community.

□ Repair/replace the foundation

□ Adjust window location and add
shear wall

□ Replace glass with dual pane metal
clad doors and windows.  Window
color: Dark Bronze, (style as per
new KVMR Building & Griggs Building;
manufacturer to be determined)

□ Add shed dormers in roof (3): 1 @
north, 2 @ south

□ Add skylights in roof (4): 4 @ north

□ Add/replace shed awnings above
doors on south and east facades

PROJECT PHILOSOPHY

PROJECT SCOPE

NORTHWEST ELEVATION - PROPOSED

SITE MAP - NOT TO SCALE

Attachment 2.1



R e b e c c a  C o f f m a n  A r c h i t e c t u r e  |  1 9 2 1 5  B - 4  R a n c h  R d  |  N e v a d a  C i t y ,  C A  |  5 3 0 . 2 6 5 . 3 3 5 5

THE 
TINNERY
205 york street nevada city, ca

SOUTHEAST ELEVATION - EXISTING

SOUTHEAST ELEVATION - PROPOSED

Attachment 2.2



R e b e c c a  C o f f m a n  A r c h i t e c t u r e  |  1 9 2 1 5  B - 4  R a n c h  R d  |  N e v a d a  C i t y ,  C A  |  5 3 0 . 2 6 5 . 3 3 5 5

THE 
TINNERY
205 york street nevada city, ca

NORTHEAST ELEVATION - EXISTING

NORTHEAST ELEVATION - PROPOSED

Attachment 2.3



R e b e c c a  C o f f m a n  A r c h i t e c t u r e  |  1 9 2 1 5  B - 4  R a n c h  R d  |  N e v a d a  C i t y ,  C A  |  5 3 0 . 2 6 5 . 3 3 5 5

THE 
TINNERY
205 york street nevada city, ca

STEEL
HANDCRAFTED
KNEE BRACE

STEEL
HANDCRAFTED
BRACKET

3/4" STEEL ROD RIGID

RUSTED STEEL AWNING

STEEL
HANDCRAFTED
BRACKET

HAND FORGED KNEE BRACE

hardware

lighting & signage

doors & windows

SURFACE MOUNTED SCONCE

DOOR WITH METAL CLADDING - SHOWN FOR 
COLOR

HAND FORGED AWNING TENSION ANCHORS

BRACED EXTERIOR LAMP BRACED METAL SIGNAGE

KVMR METAL WINDOW - SHOWN FOR CONTEXT 
AND DIVIDED LITES

3 FORKS METAL WINDOW - SHOWN FOR COLOR 
AND DIVIDED LITES

REPURPOSED DOOR SLIDER - FOUND AT 
TINNERY

Attachment 2.4



Attachment 3.1

RCLA
Polygon

RCLA
Polygon



Attachment 3.2

RCLA
Polygon

RCLA
Polygon

RCLA
Polygon

RCLA
Polygon



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:  Planning Commission 

FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

HEARING DATE: July 21, 2016 

APPLICANT: Laurie Beacock, property owner; Bruce Boyd, project architect 

RE: Applications for Architectural Review and Demolition for the Reconstruction of 

and Existing Home at 114 Mill Street 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Demolition Application and Narrative prepared by Bruce Boyd

2. Topographic Survey Map showing existing footprint

3. Statement of Fire Chief Sam Goodspeed, dated June 7, 2016

4. Architectural Review Application and Narrative prepared by Bruce Boyd

5. Proposed Architectural Plans with color elevation sheets

MULTIPLE ACTIONS REQUESTED 

1. Approve the demolition of the existing fire-damaged residence.

2. Approve the new residence as shown in the submitted exhibits.

3. Approve a Variance Request to allow the proposed residence to encroach into the front yard

SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
Lot Size: 0.25 acres Lot Coverage: 50% 
Zoning: R1-HD: Single-Family Residential-Historical District Building Height: 35-feet 
Setbacks: Front yard: 30-ft, Rear Yard: 25-ft, Interior side yards: 5-ft Historical District: Within 

BACKGROUND 

On December 22, 2015 the subject residence was substantially damaged by fire, further discussed in 

the applicant’s narrative entitled “Application for Structure Demolition” (Attachment 1) and in the 

“Demolition” section of this report. The Assessor does not have an estimated construction date for the 

original residence, but the 1898 Sanborn Map notes a residence in substantially the same footprint as 

the current residence. Other than a re-roof in 1995, building records do not indicate any remodeling 

having occurred to this residence. However, prior to 1962 no building permits were required.  

Bruce Boyd, Project Architect makes an educated assumption that the front two rooms are original 

based on the size and location of the structure shown on the Sanborn Map. He suspects the rear portion 

of the residence was added sometime later at two different times. The first addition occurred prior to 

1950 and resulted in n shallower roof pitch than the front portion of the house. Boyd also suspects that 

a porch and stairway existed at this portion because a doorway now exists 8-feet above grade.  Finally, 

a second addition appears to have been completed which expanded the residence to the current size of 

752 square feet. This last addition is sided in T-1-11 and sits on precast concrete, characteristic of 

1960’s era construction.  



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

DEMOLITION: The proposed demolition will entail the entire 752 square foot structure as shown in 

the “Topographic Survey Map” provided as Attachment 2. According to Boyd the structure lacks a 

foundation and was constructed with substandard framing and bracing. Boyd also believes that the 

existing finish materials are not original to the residence. Boyd’s opinion is that the substandard nature 

of the structure, coupled with the recent fire damage has rendered it a safety hazard and un-restorable.  

The purpose of the complete demolition is to re-build in a manner that meets current California 

Building Code standards. The Fire Department has also prepared a statement in support of demolition.  

In order for the Planning Commission to approve a demolition, they must make one of the following 

findings pursuant to Section 17.88.040 of the City Municipal Code:  

1) That the subject building is not of special historical or architectural interest or value, or an

example of the Mother Lode type of architecture

OR 

2) That while the building does have historical or architectural interest or value, or is an example

of the Mother Lode type of architecture, the subject building has become so damaged or

dilapidated, whether from damage by fire or other elements or from natural deterioration that it

is unusable and cannot reasonably be repaired or restored

Whenever the building or structure to be removed or demolished has some special historical or 

architectural interest or value, or is an example of Mother Lode architecture, the planning commission, 

as a condition of granting the demolition, may require the replacement building to reflect the style or 

character of the building being demolished. Additionally, when considering a request for demolition, 

the planning commission may consider the effect of the demolition on the low- and moderate-income 

housing stock and may require that replacement structures address this loss of housing. 

A Topographic Survey Map prepared by California Survey Company (Attachment 2) reveals the 

existing front porch of the structure to be approximately 8-feet from the front property line at its 

closest point. Under current site development standards outlined in the Municipal Code, the front-yard 

setback for R1 properties is 30-feet measured from the front property line. The original structure is 

therefore considered to be a legal, non-conforming structure. Pursuant to Section 17.76.030 of the 

Zoning Ordinance, a legal non-conforming residence may be restored to its original size and use with 

no time limit.   

PROPOSED RESIDENCE: The proposed residence will be sited over the location of the original 

footprint in a manner that maintains the view from Mill Street in terms of form and massing. The 

structure will sit further back from the front property line at 20-feet. While this setback is more 

compliant with the standard 30-foot setback, it will still be inconsistent in terms of the front yard 

setback standard.  The expanded footprint will take place in the rear and will not be readily visible 

from public view sheds. The applicant proposes to enlarge the residence to a total of 1,072 square feet, 

with a 494 square foot lower level that can accommodate a combination of storage and future second 

dwelling.  



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Proposed Finish Materials 
Feature Roofing First Floor/Gable 

End Siding* 

Lower Level Siding Trim 

Material Metal Sales, corrugated 

steel 

Hardie lap siding, 

smooth surface 

Hardie Panel siding with 

red cedar battens, spaced 

12-inches on center 

Cedar and Hardie Trim 

Color 

  
              Taupe        

               

                
                         Green Umber 

 

  
             

*applicant is open to an alternate material if the Commission prefers real wood as discussed in the Architectural Review 

Narrative, Attachment 3 

 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The enlarged square footage, from 752 sq. ft.  to 1,072 sq. ft., amounts to an 

approximate 42% increase, not including the lower level area. While more conforming than the 

existing residence, the new residence will still encroach into the standard front-yard setback by 10-feet. 

Therefore, the Planning Commission must approve a Variance in in order to also approve the residence 

as proposed.  A Variance request can only be approved when the Commission can make a finding that 

there are “special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, topography, location, 

or surroundings, [that] the strict application of [site development standards] deprives the property of 

privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical classification.  Staff 

recommends that the Planning Commission consider the “location” of the structure to be the criteria 

used to support the Variance request, in so much that the property is located within the area designated 

as the Historical District, where “preservation of such places and building, and of the architectural 

appearance of the surrounding properties within the district, is essential to the economic and cultural 

life of the city.” Further, several of the surrounding residences are clearly encroaching within the front 

yard setback.  The architect has provided a design that endeavors to preserve the primary view of the 

structure in terms of form and massing. While enlarging the structure along the north/south axis as 

opposed to the east/west axis could achieve setback compliance, the form and massing would appear 

considerably larger than the neighboring residences and would be inconsistent with neighboring 

residences with limited frontages also within the Historical District. Staff therefore supports the 

Variance request in this particular case.  

 

Noticing Note: The necessity of the Variance application was not identified by staff with enough time 

to adequately provide public notice in accordance with Section 17.88.030 of the City Municipal Code.  

To date, the Variance Application has not been received.  Staff is therefore recommending that if the 

Planning Commission wishes to approve the Variance and the Architectural Review applications, that 

the Commission do so with a “Motion of Intent” so that staff may provide proper noticing prior to the 

next meeting date at which time the Planning Commission may take final action.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

Because residential use of a structure is an allowed use in the R1 zoning designation, local authority 

can only be ministerial in nature. Sections 21080 of the Public Resource Code, of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), exempts ministerial projects from environmental review.   

 

 

 

 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The
County will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.
Therefore, prior to issuance of a building permit, submit three sets of plans to Nevada City Planning
Department, along with a filing fee of $80 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  The plans will
be reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the approval and will require
their signatures.

2. The applicant shall apply for a second dwelling application at such time that a second dwelling unit is
proposed.

3. All future structures shall conform to site development standards including setbacks unless another
Variance is approved by the Planning Commission.

4. A Planning Commission member shall be appointed as a Liaison to assist the applicant with any minor
modifications to the permit, if needed.

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 

A. Make a Motion to Approve the Demolition Application making one of the following findings
pursuant to Section 17.88.040 of the City Municipal Code:

1) That the subject building is not of special historical or architectural interest or value, or an
example of the Mother Lode type of architecture

OR 

2) That while the building does have historical or architectural interest or value, or is an example

of the Mother Lode type of architecture, the subject building has become so damaged or
dilapidated, whether from damage by fire or other elements or from natural deterioration that it
is unusable and cannot reasonably be repaired or restored

B. Make a Motion of Intent to Approve a Variance Request making the following findings pursuant to
Section 17.88.030 of the City Municipal Code:

1) That there are special circumstances applicable to the property, including the property’s
location within the designated Historical District, that the strict application of standard 30-foot
front yard setback deprives the property of privileges enjoyed by other residential properties in
the vicinity that are also within the Historical District.

2) That the preservation of the architectural appearance of properties within the Historic District is
essential to the economic and cultural life of the city.

3) That conditions have been applied to this project that will assure that the Variance  to the front
yard setback shall not constitute a special privilege s inconsistent with the limitations upon
other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the such property is situated.

C. Make a Motion of Intent to Approve the Architectural Review Application making the following
findings pursuant to Section 17.88.040 of the City Municipal Code:

1) That the proposed residential structure is generally compatible with Mother Lode style
Architecture and with the Historical District

2) That the proposed residence is compatible with the context of the surrounding neighborhood.



Attachment 1.1



Attachment 1.2



Attachment 1.3



Attachment 1.4



Attachment 1.5



Attachment 1.6



Attachment 1.7



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



Attachment 4.1



Attachment 4.2



Attachment 4.3



Attachment 4.4



Attachment 4.5



Attachment 4.6



Attachment 4.7



Attachment 4.8



Attachment 4.9



Attachment 4.10



Attachment 4.11



Attachment 4.12



Attachment 4.13



Attachment 4.14



                               City of Nevada City 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 

 

 

 
TO:     Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
HEARING DATE:  July 21, 2016 
 
APPLICANT: Lorraine Reich, Peace and Justice Center 
 
RE:  Recommendation to City Council on Location of a Utah Phillips Peace Bench:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Letter from Lorraine Reich, May 31. 2016 
2. Email Correspondence from site owners 
3. Proposal Statement, Peace and Justice Center 
4. Mockup of Proposed Sculpture 

 
ACTIONS REQUESTED 

1. Provide design and placement recommendation to the City Council for placement of the Utah 
Philips Peace Bench 

 
BACKGROUND 
At the September 9, 2015 City Council Meeting, representatives of the Peace and Justice Center 
presented an initial proposal to place a bench commemorating the late singer, Utah Phillips at an as-
yet-determined location in the downtown area. At that time, Mayor Ray and Councilmember Anderson 
indicated concern about the scale and felt it would be more appropriate in a park setting. 
Councilmembers Bergman and Vice-Mayor Phelps, however, were supportive of the proposal in the 
downtown area. The applicants argued that the downtown area is necessary in order to promote 
tourism and in order to appropriately honor Mr. Phillips who frequented each of the proposed 
locations. The Council ultimately referred the matter to the Planning Commission to refine the 
proposal and recommend a preferred location. 
 
PROJECT PROPOSAL: 
The applicant is proposing to erect a life-size, bronze sculpture of Utah Phillips sitting on a bench. 
Their preferred location for the bench would be in a tourist-heavy downtown space.  The applicant has 
provided three site options that will meet their criteria. Those sites, in order of preference, are as 
follows: 
 

1st  Preference 2nd Preference 3rd Preference 

   
Asylum Down (Pine St. Side) Sprithouse (Broad St. Side) Java Johns (Broad Street) 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

The three owners have all provided consent to having the sculpture placed at their respective business 

locations. The applicant has indicated that they are not interested in siting the sculpture at Pioneer 

Park, nor on Spring Street at the KVMR building because these locations are not public enough to 

attract tourists. The intention of the Utah Philips Peace Bench is to promote the late singer’s message 

for peace and promote public art in the downtown area and therefore they are requesting the Planning 

Commission consider downtown locations.  

 

NATIONAL REGISTER STATUS 

While no formal comment has been requested from the office of the National Register of Historic 

Places for this particular proposal, staff expects this project to be similar to that of the Commercial 

Street boardwalk project. Comments received by the National Register office for that project indicated 

that the City’s National Register status is based on the architecture of the contributing buildings.  Since 

the bench will be placed on the sidewalk and is not physically altering a contributing building, much 

like the boardwalk, no impact to the City’s National Register status is anticipated.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  

The project would be exempt from environmental review pursuant to Sections 15311of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  Exemption applies to the construction of minor 

structures accessory to existing commercial facilities.  Placement of a Utah Philips Peace Bench in the 

downtown area will be accessory to the General Business district   

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission, after hearing from the public and consideration, 

recommend the draft ordinance for adoption to the City Council, with any modifications. 

 

 
















